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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF WEST VIRGINIA 

AT HUNTINGTON 

BENJAMIN H., by his next friend, Georgann 
H.; DAVID F., by his guardian, Carolyn 
B.; LORI BETH S., by her next friend, 
Janie J.; THOMAS V., by his next 
friend, Patricia V.; JUSTIN E., by his 
next friend, Sherry E., 

Plaintiffs, 

RECEIVED 

AUG I 7 1999 

SAMUEL L KAY, CLERK 
U.S. District & Bankruptcy Courts 
Southern District of West Virginia 

v. CIVIL ACTION NO. 3:99-0338 

JOAN OHL, Secretary of the Department of 
Health and Human Resources, 

Defendant. 

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF 
PLAINTIFFS' MOTION FOR CLASS CERTIFICATION 

I. INTRODUCTION 

This case involves Medicaid beneficiaries in West Virginia who are eligible for 

intermediate care level services through the Medicaid program because they are mentally 

retarded or developmentally disabled. Rather than cover the comprehensive range of 

services that these plaintiffs need, the defendant has placed plaintiffs on waiting lists for 

its home and community based waiver (HCBW) program. This Court has issued a 

preliminary injunction ordering the defendant to comply with provisions of the federal 

Medicaid Act which require it to offer plaintiffs a choice of institutional or home-based 

services and to provide services with reasonable promptness and consistent with 
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requirements for due process. Memorandum Opinion and order (July 15, 1999). 

Plaintiffs have moved for certification of this case as a class action, as follows: 

All current and future West Virginia residents with developmental 
disabilities or mental retardation who are Medicaid beneficiaries and who 
are eligible for the level of services funded under the Intermediate Care 
Facility for the Mentally Retarded (ICF/MR) service and/or the Mentally 
Retarded/Developmentally Disabled Home and Community Based Waiver 
(MRIDD HCBW) service. 

II. ARGUMENT 

To maintain this action as a class action, the named plaintiffs must satisfy all four 

of the provisions of Rule 23(a) and one of the subdivisions of Rule 23(b). See,~, 

Lukenas v. Bryce's Mountain Resort, Inc., 538 F.2d 594, 595 (4th Cir. 1976). "The party 

seeking certification under Rule 23 bears the burden of demonstrating the requirements of 

the Rule." Black v. Rhone-Poulenc, Inc., 173 F.R.D. 156, 159 (S.D.W.Va. 1996)(Haden, 

CJ). "The recent trend in class certification decisions is to interpret Rule 23 flexibly and 

give it a liberal construction." Id. (citing Kidwell v. Transp. Communications Int'I 

Union, 946 F.2d 283,305 (4th Cir. 1991), cert. denied, 503 U.S. 1005 (1992). 

A. Requirements of Rule 23Ca) 

The prerequisites to a class action set forth in Rule 23 (a) are: (I) the class is so 

numerous that joinder of members is impracticable; (2) there are questions of law or fact 

common to the class; (3) the claims of the class representative parties are typical of those 

ofthe class; and (4) the representative parties will fairly and adequately protect the 

interest of the class. Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a). 
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I. Numerosity 

Rule 23(a)(1) requires the class to be so numerous that joinder of all parties is 

impracticable. "No specified number is needed to maintain a class action." Brady v. 

Thurston Motor Lines, 726 F.2d 136, 145 (4th Cir.), cert. denied, 469 U.S. 827 (1984). 

The Court of Appeals has said that classes of 18 and 74 persons can meet the numerosity 

requirement. Id. this Court has certified a class when the estimated size numbered 2,000 

to 5,000 individuals. See Rhone-Poulenc, 173 F.R.D. at 160. See also I H. Newberg, 

Class Actions ~ 3.05 (2d ed. 1985) (noting that when putative class members as few as 40 

members, there is a presumption that joinder is impracticable). 

Notably, "[i]mpracticality of joinder is not determined by a numerical test alone." 

Christman v. American Cyanamid Co., 92 F.R.D. 441, 451 (N.D. W.Va. 1981)(citing 

Ballard v. Blue Shield of Southern West Virginia, 543 F.2d 1980 (4th Cir. 1976), cert. 

denied, 430 U.S. 922 (1977)). "Factors relevant to the evaluation of numerosity include . 

. . the geographic diversity of the class, the difficulty of identifying class members, and 

the negative impact on judicial economy if individual suits were required." Rhone­

Poulenc, 173 F.R.D. at 160 (quoting United Brotherhood of Carpenters & Joiners of 

America, Local 899 v. Phoenix Assocs .. Inc., 152 F.R.D. 518, 522 (S.D. W.Va. 1994). 

See also I H. Newberg, Class Actions ~ 3.05 (2d ed. 1985) (discussing pertinent factors 

to establishing numerosity). 

The putative class in this case numbers from several hundred to over a thousand 

individuals. The named plaintiffs seek to represent a class of medicaid beneficiaries who, 

because of mental retardation or developmental disability, need intermediate care level 

services but are being placed on waiting lists for these services. Evidence submitted at a 
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preliminary injunction hearing on Jun 30, 1999 showed that, as of January 28, 1999, 

between 270 and 300 individuals were on waiting lists for MRiDD HCBW services and 

that about twice that number were eligible for these services but had not been fully 

evaluated by the regional behavioral health centers because their addition to the waiver 

list would be futile, Memorandum Opinion and Order at 12 (July 15, 1999). In addition, 

data from the West Virginia Department of Education show there are 4,502 children with 

mental retardation or developmental disability who are currently being served, to some 

extend, by the school system. In he next five years, it is estimated that 1,875 children 

will age-out of the school system and require behavioral health care at an ICRlMR level. 

West Virginia Department of Education, Exception Students in West Virginia's County 

School Districts at 63 (FY I 998)(Submitted as Complaint, Exhibit 4). Thus, the number 

of children who are members of the class potentially exceed 1,000. with respect to both 

children and adults, the vast majority of these beneficiaries are classified as "categorically 

needy," 42 U.S.C. §1396(a)(IO)(A), because they are receiving cash benefits or qualify 

for Medicaid through a poverty related program. See Care Financing Administration, 

Medicaid Recipients by Maintenance Assiatance Status and by State (FY 1997) (Attached 

hereto as Class Certification Exhibit A). 

In addition, the plaintiffs seek to represent classes that include future Medicaid 

beneficiaries who will need intermediate care level services. Testimony at the June 30th 

hearing showed that the number of eligible persons is likely to increase over the next five 

years by several hundred. Memorandum Opinion and Order at 13 (July IS, 1999). 

While sheer numbers alone should meet the numerosity requirement, the 

prerequisite is met in other respects, as well. The named plaintiffs and members of the 
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class are disbursed geographically all over the state. The composition of the class is fluid 

and growing, thus, it is impracticable to identify and join each new individual. See 

generally. Bruce v. Christian, 113 F.R.D. 554, 557 (S.D.N.Y. 1986) ("fluid composition 

of public housing population is particularly well-suited for status as class because while 

identity of individuals involved may change, the nature of the harm and the basic 

parameters of the group affected remain constant"); In re: Whittaker, 84 Bankr. 934 

(Bankr. ED. Pa. 1988) (class of past and future debtors certified because potential 

members satisfied the joinder impracticability requirement). Finally, certification of this 

case as a class action will ensure that the defendant is not subjected to various rulings by 

differing courts in individual cases, thus enhancing judicial economy. The requirements 

of Rule 23(a)(l) are met in this case. 

2. Commonality 

Fed. R. Civ. P. rule 23(a)(2) requires that there be common questions oflaw or 

fact with respect to the class. "This factor is stated in the disjunctive." Rhone-Poulenc, 

173 F.R.D. at 161. Moreover, the Rule "does not require that all questions of fact and 

law be common, but only demands that a question oflaw or fact be presented which is 

shared in the grievances of the prospective class as defined." 3B James W. Moore, et aI., 

Moore's Federal Practice ~ 23.06-1 (2nd ed .... 1987). See also, l<&, Kennedy v. Sullivan, 

138 F.R.D. 484, 488 (N.D. W.Va. 1991) (certifying class where there "may be factual 

variations in the exact manner in which the individuals within the class are affected by 

the existing policy"). The United States Supreme Court has said that class relief is 

particularly appropriate when the "issues involved are common to the class as a whole" 

and when they turn on questions of law applicable in the same manner to each member of 
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the class." General Telephone Co. of Southwest v. Falcon, 457 U.S. 147, ISS (1982), 

remanded 686 F.2d 216 (5th Cir. 1982) (quoting Califano v. Yamasaki, 442 U.S. 682, 

700-01 (1979». 

Here, plaintiffs and the putative class members share numerous common facts. 

All of the class members have chronic medical problems, as a result developmental 

disabilities or mental retardation. All of them have been found eligible for the Medicaid 

program and for intermediate care level services through that program. The plaintiffs 

need a similar range of treatment services, including home health care, speech and 

physical therapy, rehabilitation and habilitation services, case managements services, 

personal care services, respite care, and transportation. All of the plaintiffs have 

expressed a preference to receive these services in home or community based settings. 

However, the plaintiffs have not and are not receiving the amount or scope of 

intermediate care level services that they need. In so doing, the defendant has not 

provided plaintiffs with written notices that explain the defendant's decisions or that offer 

them an opportunity to challenge the decisions. Testimony at the preliminary injunction 

hearing illustrated how, without care, the plaintiffs' conditions are fluctuating and 

deteriorating, and their families are experiencing great emotional and financial strain. 

While their individual fact patterns may show some variance, plaintiffs and the 

putative class members also share common issues oflaw. "When the [class 1 claim arises 

out of the same legal or remedial theory, the presence offactual variation is normally not 

sufficient to preclude class action treatment." Christman v. American Cynamid Co., 92 

F.R.D. 441 (N.D. W.Va. 1981). Se also Hosey v. Armour & Co., 743 F.2d 199,217 (4th 
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Cir. 1984), cert. denied, 470 U.S. 1028 (1985) ("Despite the presence of individual 

factual questions, the commonality criterion of Rule 23(a) is satisfied by the common 

questions oflaw presented."). Here, the plaintiffs' claims arise from the same legal 

theories. The plaintiffs are alleging that the defendant is engaging in practices and 

policies that violate five mandatory provisions of the Medicaid Act: the freedom of 

choice requirement, 42 U.S.C. § 1396n(c)(2); the comparability provisions, 42 U.S.C. § 

1396a(a)(lO)(B); requirements for Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and 

Treatment (EPSDT) for plaintiffs under age 21, 42 U.S.C. I 1396a(a)(4)(B), and 

1396d(r); due process rights, 42 U.S.C. § 1396a(a)(3); and the opportunity to apply for 

and receive assistance with reasonable promptness requirements, 42 U.S.c. §1396a(a)(8). 

The plaintiffs allege that the failure of the Department to provide them with notices of the 

actions being taken also violates the Due Process Clause of the U.S. Constitution. 

Finally, the plaintiffs allege that the defendant's practices and policies violate the 

American with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101-12213, which prohibits 

discrimination on the basis of disability in access to public services, including Medicaid. 

Finally, the named plaintiffs seek the same remedy - injunctive and declaratory relief 

that will benefit the class as a whole. Plaintiffs have satisfied the commonality factor. 

3. Typicality 

Rule 23(a)(3) requires typicality of claims between the named plaintiffs and the 

putative class. "When it is alleged that the same unlawful conduct was directed at or 

affected both the named plaintiffs and the class sought to be represented, the typicality 

requirement is usually met irrespective of varying fact patterns which underlie individual 

claims." Rhone-Poulenc, 173 F.R.D. at 162 (quoting I H. Newberg, Class Actions ~ 3.13 
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(3rd ed. 1992)). In other words. "precise, mirror-image identity" of injuries is not 

required. Kennedy, 138 F.R.D. at 488 (quoting International Woodworkers of America. 

AFL-CIO v. Chesapeake Bay Plywood Corp., 659 F.2d 1259, 1270 (4th Cir. 1981)). See 

also, ~, Phoenix Assocs., Inc., 152 F .R.D. at 522 (typicality "requires that the 

representatives' claims be typical of other class members' claims, not that the claims be 

identical. "). 

Thus, the typicality rule merely assures that the class representatives' interests are 

"aligned" with those of the class. Kennedy, 138 F.R.D. at 488. "This [tpicality] factor 

and the commonality requirement often merge." Rhone-Poulenc, 173 F.R.D. at 161. As 

recently noted by the Supreme Court, these two prerequisites "serve as guideposts for 

determining whether ... maintenance of a class action is economical and whether the 

named plaintiff s claim and the class claims are so interrelated that the interests of the 

class members will be fairly and adequately protected in their absence." Amchem Prods., 

Inc. v. Windsor, _ U.S. _,117 S.Ct. 2231, 2251 n. 20.138 L.Ed.2d 689 (1997) 

(quoting General Telephone Co. of Southwest v. Falcon, 457 U.S. 147, 157 n. 13 (1982)). 

Compare 3B James W. Moore, et aI., Moore's Federal Practice ~ 23.06-2 (2nd ed. 1987) 

("[T]here appears to be little or no need for this [typicality] clause, since all meanings 

attributable to it duplicate requirements prescribed by other provisions un Rule 23 "). 

In this case, the named plaintiffs' interests are clearly aligned with those of the 

class. As set forth above, in the discussion of commonality. the named plaintiffs and 

putative class members share numerous common facts. The named plaintiffs and each 

class member rely on the same legal and remedial theories based on the same alleged 
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course of conduct by the defendant. The requested declaratory and injunctive relief, if 

granted, will benefit all class members. Thus, Rule 23(a)(3) has been met. 

4. Adequacy of Representation 

Finally, Rule 23(a) provides that the named plaintiffs must "fairly and adequately 

protect the interests of the class." Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a)(4). "When assessing the class 

representatives' ability to adequately represent the interests of the class, the Court must 

consider the abilities of both the attorneys who represent the class representatives, and the 

class representatives themselves." Rhone-Poulenc, 173 F .R.D. at 162 (quoting Phoenix 

Assocs .. Inc., 152 F.R.D. at 523)). "[T]he two factors that are now predominantly 

recognized as the basic guidelines for the Rule 23(a)(4) prerequisite [as to representative 

plaintiffs] are (1) absence of conflict and (2) assurance of vigorous prosecution." Id. 

(quoting 1 H. Newberg, Class Actions ~ 3.22 (3rd ed. 1992)). Regarding adequacy of 

class counsel, "courts consider the competence and experience of class counsel, attributes 

which will most often be presumed in the absence of proof to the contrary." Id. (quoting 

1 H. Newberg, Class Actions ~ 3.24 (3rd ed. 1992)). 

The class representatives in this case do not have interests which are antagonistic 

to the interests of the class as a whole. Rather, the named representatives and the other 

class members have a common interest in seeing that intermediate care level services are 

available to Medicaid beneficiaries throughout the state within reasonably prompt time 

frames. The named representatives' knowledge of and involvement in this case, along 

with their desire to vigorously pursue this action, was illustrated during the June 30th 

hearing when they obtained child care and otherwise arranged their difficult lives to 

appear in person at the hearing. During the second day ofthe hearing mothers returned to 
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monitor the proceedings. The named plaintiffs will fairly and adequately protect the 

interests of the class. 

Plaintiffs' counsel are qualified, experienced, and capable of pursuing this 

litigation. Plaintiffs' attorneys are employed by non-profit law firms which exclusively 

represent low income persons and/or individuals with disabilities. These attorneys have 

experience in class actions and public entitlement laws. They have acted as lead counsel 

or co-counsel in numerous class actions brought in federal and state court. See 

Declaration of Jane Perkins (attached hereto as Exhibit B; other counsel known to the 

court). Plaintiffs' attorneys are qualified to conduct this litigation. The requirements of 

Rule 23(a)(4) are met. 

B. Requirements of Rule 23(b)(2) 

In addition to meeting the prerequisites of Fed. R. Civ. P. Rule 23(a), plaintiffs 

must demonstrate that this action is maintainable under one of the three provisions of 

Fed. R. Civ. P. Rule 23(b). In this case, the plaintiffs reply on Rule 23(b)(2), which 

provides that class certification is appropriate when "the party opposing the class has 

acted or refused to act on grounds generally applicable to the class, thereby making 

appropriate final injunctive relief with respect to the class as a whole." 

The present action is well-suited to certification pursuant to Rule 23(b )(2), since 

the defendant's conduct has or has the potential to affect the entire class in similar ways -

namely, to affect their ability to obtain timely and comprehensive intermediate care level 

services. The plaintiffs have requested injunctive and declaratory relieffor the class as a 

whole. The defendant's challenged conducted is "generally applicable" to the class which 

plaintiffs seek to represent, and the requirement of Rule 23(b)(2) is met in this case. 
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III. CONCLUSION 

The four factors of Rule 23(a) and the requirements of Rule 23(b)(2) are satisfied 

in this case. Plaintiffs respectfully request this class be certified as requested by the 

plaintiffs. 

BENJAMIN H., by his next friend, Georgann 
H.; DAVID F., by his guardian, Carolyn 
B.; LORI BETH S., by her next friend, 
Janie J.; THOMAS V., by his next 
friend, Patricia V.; JUSTI~ E., by his 
next friend, Sherry E. and all other similarly 
situated, 
By Counsel. 

"di~IE~~Bar # 1660) 
Mountain State Justice, Inc. 
922 Quarrier St, Suite 525 
Charleston, WV 25301 
(304) 344-3144 
(304) 344-3145 (fax) 

REGAN BAILEY (WV Bar # 7055) 
KENT BRYSON (WV Bar # 7274) 
West Virginia Advocates, Inc. 
1207 Quarrier St., 4th Fl. 
Charleston, WV 25301 
(304) 346-0847 

JANE PERKINS 
National Health Law Program, Inc. 
211 N. Columbia St.l2nd Floor 
Chapel Hill, NC 27514 
(919) 968-6308 
COUNSEL FOR PLAINTIFFS 
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I HCFA Beneficiaries Plans & Providers States Researchers PLAINTIFF'S 
~ EXHIBIT 

1~IM~~~Ic~ar~e~~M~~~lc~al~d __ ~C~H~IP __ ~C=u~st=o~m=e~rS~e~rV~I~ce~~F~A~Q~s-li __ ~A~ __ _ 

TABLE 1. 

MEDICAID RECIPIENTS BY MAINTENANCE ASSISTANCE STATUS AND BY 
STATE 

FISCAL YEAR 1997 

I I 
RECEIVING G;]~ TOTAL CASH MEDICALL Y POVERTY MAS 

STATE RECIPIENTS PAYMENTS NEEDY RELATED OTHER UNKNOW 

1
27 ALL II I I I III JURISDICTIONS 33,578,980 16,038,098 3,533,298 7,568,643 5,534,68211 904,25 

117 ALABAMA II 546, 15211 275,06IjI -II 203,308 11 65,37111i=====;2~,4i71 
117 ALASKA II 73,05011 49,29011 -II 11,281 11 9,32011 3,15 
IARIZONA II 540,78511 205, 19611 -II 146.408 11 189,18111i===~ 
p7 ARKANSAS 1\ 370,38611 181,2161\ 24,39611 106,46211 54,63311 3,67 
1 ~II :;:;7 C;;:;A~L::::;;IFrnO;:;:RN::;;mIA=~ ~=4::::;;, 8::;;:54;=,5;:;;4~611:==2""';;;;;77;;<2'7,4om6~1~1 =='=1 ,7<0 5;;;;7~,4C7'60~1: 1=1;=;<2~0 ,T-41~311 560,64211 34 3,62 
117 COLORADO 251,42311 127,75811 -II 55, 11011 66,93311 1,62 
1i7IC<7'01i:iNFi<1N'F£C~T'FiI7iCnUT~=j 1===;;;27fO 1~, 7'f97;ffi911:=====;6""8~, 60""3~1~1 ==4TI<9"",8""4 i'iIj: 1==i'1~9 ,~06ml911 64,26611i==~ 
117 DELAWARE 83,95611 35,71211 -II 33,26311 13,520 11 1,46 

Ig~Z~J;2F I 128,00811 90,26sll 29,3s711 6,8271~1 
117 FLORIDA I,S97,46111 858,06111 4S,02811 407,30311 269,02911 18,04 

1i;=17rTGnE~0n=R""GrIA===j~=1 ,=20=8=,4=45=j1:1==5=6=0,=79==1411:====8=1=i61:~1 =44=9=,8=52=l1~1=18=2,=24=3il~1 ==14=,7=4 
117 HA WAIl I -II -II -II -II -II 

IfrllTi/Ifi'iDCTATIH7'iO====111=1 ==;1"i"15f=i, 0;fii8~71 PI =""2"'5"'9, 7~8 slli====TII: ~I ===;3""1""', 0'i'i18;ol1~ I ===;;5""'3 ,""20;;;;7~1 ~ I ==S;=;;, 0""7 

11p,ILTiLFi<1INF'R0'r,I""Sn=====iIli==1 ~,3T;99F;,9"ii'6;rl01\i===>;,;68;;;;0~,4;p0 1~l\f ==2 7=9=,9=34~1:1=1~7~9 'Ti05",4HII= ~2~60~,5iii'7~llpl ==i'ii''m< 
II/INDIANA 514,68311 267,57211 -II 110, 18911 118,09711 18,82 

1T'17rrIO>=jW~A'TI"==~i===""29,,,3~,S;m96oll:I==1;=;;4",S,~1 0~611==,;;;17;<=,2~5~71.~1 ==;S'7i07i,57C08~1~1 ==;;7",,9 '7'25;;;;9il~1 ====;1~,4m'6 
117 KANSAS 232,88811 IOS,99111 30,85811 59,05411 32,67811 4,30 

111 KENTUCKY I ====>i6T,64~,4i754TiIli====;n36Pi'9~,3m61~lfl::::7S=;5~,0:6~6~1·~:1= ===;='IIT5:87i'm0'7i4~8~1~1 ::6""'2~'~0;;i;3~9;I~pl :::771==9~, 9""4 
ILOU I S IAN A 11====i'7;;;46~, 4",,6TJ111i====;2 8",,2'7<' I ~8611===.=2;;=;J",3=;i31~1 ===;11i73~, 0",,5 8~1~ I =3",4'78'",,8 8",,4jl~1 ===;~ 
l:;:;lI;:;:M;;;AT;I:;:::N

T
E m;;:=~I~1 =~16~7::;;,2;;;21~1 ~1=:::::;;;8;:3 ,:::;:;97~711==:;:18:;:,2;;;1~41 ;::1 =;:;2;;6::;,5:;:;0 7;1~ I =:=;3~6,:;:03;:;;0~1 ~ I ===2:::.4=9 

IMARYLAND II 402,00211 208,40411 65,639 11 IOS,54911 19.410 11 
IMAS SACHO S£TTS 11'======;;;7""23';'.4fii7~21·1i====;='41rT4'7<,04T'7~lfl ===;2C7, 9"'5 7~1:1==;2~oT,=o,T,=o 1mgHII= =;1~o6;=.4i5%oIPI === 

1~II;=;;MTIITICHTII'F.G"'7A""N;;=;==iI~ 1==1 '",1 39'T2=;;, 77f8 3~1: 1==)""-7,,,,0'7-S 6,.,.:411===;2""40;;=;, 7""8cii41 ~I ==;='1 7""S=ii, 8m91~1~ I ==76""'2 ,~3 9"""1~1 ~ I ==S""O;=;.1~5 
j1I MINNESOTA II 371.48311 15S.47611 15,OS411 22.97911 173.21211 4,73 

III MI SSI SSIPP I 11i==::;5T.04"",0:rn1~711;:: =T2 STIO::;;,4",,48~1I; ===13=,6=4:::;011i=:::::;:;7;:8'",,1 ):;:,;-9;1~ I ::;1;=.;:S :;:3, 9;,;;3;;;:5 1:;::1 ==:;;7=i:' 8 3 
III MISSOURI ILl ___ 5_40-..:.,4_8.....J7I LI ___ 14_1_J_06..l1,1 ______ ----1-IL 159,990 11 23S,97711 3,21 
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117 MOl\lTANA II 95,50211 45,94711 0,87411 11,05711 22,207 11 8,89 

Il\IEBRASKA II 203,J4°11 95,08911 5 I ,()t)911 0),72911 1l,423 11 
Il7l\1EV ADA II j(j3,38811 52,90211 -II 27,24911 20,51 III 4,92 

I!7NEW 
II 95,21511 31,77811 9,50111 29,09011 23,42911 1,41 ,HAMPSHIRE 

l!7l\1EW JERSEY II 537,89011 281,55711 0,938 11 95,394 11 147,922 11 5,87 
INEWMEXIW II 320,223 11 101,24011 -II l3O,I 28 11 20,80411 1,99 
INEwYORK II 3,151,83711 1,933,07011 I,02M0711 ! 19,3WII 79,34011 

1~~~b~INA II 1,112,93111 599,48111 117,57411 337,93011 57,94611 
l!7l\1oRTH 
DAKOTA I 61,11711 25,00011 15,68711 10,3151~1 1,76 

IOHIO U95,54°11 584,201 11 -II 
70 I, j(j311 50,17011 

IOKLAHOMA 315,801 11 -II -II -II -II m,80 
IOREGON I m,24211 118,05811 3,07411 jI4,]()?11 94,803 11 

117 PENNSYLVANIA II 1,024,99311 455,25711 88,25611 247,48711 228,45411 
117 RHODE ISLAND II 110,70011 08,29911 j(j,4oOI1 9,051 11 21,8S911 

I
SOOTH 
,CAROLINA I 519,87511 197,28111 -II 194,68911127,90511 
ISOOTH DAKOTA 75,44411 3 I ,05511 -II 20, I 9011 IS,l9911 
j'I'ENNESSEE 1,415,01211 358,oS211 139,04411 724,771 11 192,515 11 
ITEXAS I 2,538,055 11 I,09o,05SI1 45,28211 907,43411 495,SSIII 
117 UTAH I 144,74911 47,505 11 3,01211 44,5IS11 44,57711 
I!7VERMONT j(j9,283 11 38,10811 11,21211 39,S93 11 18,32011 
IVIRGINIA 595,23411 207,mll 21,00711 219, 19411 S7,04211 
117 WASHINGTON ojO,l 0511 232,32711 11,ISoll 121,SOoll 202,S51 11 
IWEST VIR:Ull\llA II 359,091 11 200,0 I 011 9,701 11 38,971 11 j(j9 ,S03 II 
117 wISCONSIN II 392,223 11 174,50SI1 22,02411 30,50211 150,21411 
II? WYOMING II 4S,80511 17,24711 -II 14,57711 15,11011 
IPUEIUO RICO II -II -II -II -II -II 
IVIRUIl\! ISLANDS II 17,15411 5,735 11 j(j,235 11 

-II -II 
11 MEDICAID STATISTICAL INFORMATION SYSTEM (MSIS), 
21 HA WAIl AND PUERTO RICO ARE NOT INCLUDED IN ALL JURISDICTIONS TOTALS, 
MAS = MAINTENANCE ASSISTANCE STATUS, 
SOURCE: HCFA, CMSO, HCFA-2082 REPORT 
JANUARY 12, 1999 

8 Return to ProfessionallTechnicallnl(lrmation 
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BENJAMIN H., by his next friend, G 
DAVID F., by his guardian, Carolyn 
LORI BETH S., by her next friend, J ie J., 
lHOMAS Y., by his next friend, Pat cia V., and 
JUS TIN E., by his next friend, Sh 
individually and on behalf of all other 
similarly situated, 

I,' 

'.I!>JlJl\.1,CT COURT FOR 
WEST VIRGINIA 

CIViL nON NO. 3:99-0338 

JOAN OHL, Secretary of the Depart ent 
of Health and Human Resources, 

. ~r.kiN 
LfIl!.llll!.!!iL£~~"f!--r Ql!.Sl' Certification 

1, Jane Perkins, J.D., M.P.H., declare s follows: 
I' ., 

Page 15/21 

I. The following matters state in this decJar' are true of my own personal knowledge. 
I" 

If called as witness in this action, I wO Id truthfully a mpetently testify consistent with the 

following 

2. I am one of the counsel for he plaintiffs in This declaration 

is submitted in support of plaintiffs' m tion for class fication. It describes my educational and 

professional background. 

Pro rience 

J 
PLAINTIFF'S 

EXHIBIT 

13 
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3. I have worked as an attorn at the Natio ealth Law Program for approximately 

fifteen years. I am the Director of Le al Affairs at t . ograrn. The National Health Law 

Program is a non-profit law firm spec lizing in healt ues affecting low-income people and 

individuals with disabilities My subst tive areas of entration are Medicaid, civil rights, and 

children's health. 

4. Prior to employment with t e National He 
I 

Law Program, I was an Assistant 

Attorney General in the State ofM . I was assigned to the Department of 

Health and Mental Hygiene. While th e, I was enga most exclusively in litigation and 

maintained an extensive docket offed ral, state and a . nistrativc law cases. Prior to that, I was 

an associate with Carpenter, Higgins d Simons, a I rrn in Burlingame, California which 

specialized in planning and litigation r. r health care ti ies 

5 I received my 1.0. from the University of h Carolina, Chapel Hill, and a 

Masters in Public Health from the Uni ersity of Calif< " Berkeley. 
i 

6. I was admitted to the State ar of Califo r 1982. I am also admitted to practice 

before the United States Supreme Co ,Courts of A als for the Ninth and Tenth Circuits, the 

Central, Northern and Eastern District of California, the State Bars ofNonh Carolina and 
I 
'i 

Maryland. 

7. My Medicaid class action c ses tnclude: Fr v. Concannon, No 97-CV-24-P-C (D. 

Me. 1998) (settlement) (EPSDT for c 'Idren needing ~e and community based services for 

mental health and mental illness); ~'llIlllIIILv Di trict 0 lumbi . 1996 WL 76&03& (D.D.C, Oct. 

16, 1 996)(amended findings of fact an conclusions 0 ,I ), ~mecase, 938 F. Supp. 926 (DOC 

1996), 5IIme elISe, Wellington y. Distri t of .1 1'. Supp 1 (D.D.C 1994)(enforcement 

2 
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I 

of Medicaid Act and EPSDT/Section 

II 
I I 

~~~UI-~ew~i~s No 2:92-0353 (S.D.W.Va){Order 

and Compliance Plan, March 1, 199~) d (Summary gmen!, Aug. 16, 1993), re::printed lit CCH, 

Medicare & Medicaid Guide ~ 43,120 (preventive ca r children in out of home placement); ,. 
I: 

Wolford v. Lewis, 860 F. Supp. 1123 SD.W. Va. 19 (quality in residential and board and care 

homes, Medicaid transportation); son v Raifo 0 3:92-CV-1519-R (N.D. Tex. Sept 23, 

I 
,1,776 (Medicaid EPSDT coverage); 1993), reprinted at CCH, !l!M~e~d!!!ic:l!ar!!e~-¥~~;liiiY! 

Coleman y Glynn. 983 F.2d 737 (6th ir 1993)(Me 'd eligibility); Clark v Coye. 967 F.2d 585 

(9th Cif. 1992), affg and remanding 7 8 F. Supp. 57 .D. Cal. 1990)(Medicaid provider 

participation); Sneede:: v Kizer. 728 F. Supp. 1003 . Cal. I 990)(Medicaid eligibility), 856 F. 

Supp. 526 (1994 )(attomey fees); Citiz s Action Le v Kizer, 670 F Supp 874 (N 0 Cal 

1987), rev'd, 887 F.2d 1003 (9th Cir. 989), cer!. d 110 S.Ct 1524 (I990)(Medicaid estate 

recovery). 

8. I am an adjunct associate p fessor at the . ersity of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, 

where I teach health policy at the Sch I of Social W I was a visiting lecturer on Health Policy 

and Law at the University of North Colina School . w from 1993-1996. 

9. I have published a number f manuals and . les on Medicaid and health care poverty 

law topics, including: 

Perkins, "Maintaining Health 
Importance of Early and Perio ic Screening, 
Rev. 450 (JanlFeb. 1999). 

·n Amid Welfare Confusion: The 
nosis and Treatment," 32 Clearinghouse 

'nlRviwfEI 

Perkins, et al., A Guide to ~'!fil!!i!!.!~..!l!:!n:l~IjuLlll1.lli:ll,l]J~ . .!1rul.~r ~d!~~ic;i M.an4g\Xl 
Care (Jan. 1998) (available fro ashington, DC) 

3 
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~ting the Health Care Needs of English, Kapphahn, Perkins & ~ibbelsman, . 
Adolescents in Managed Care: A Position Pa 
22 J. Ado!. Health 271 (1998) 

pf the Society for Adolescent Medicine," 

Perkins, "Resolving Complain in Medicaid ~ . 
Consumer Protections," 34 N~ lionallnstitute 
1997). 

. 

laged Care The 'Brutal Need' for 
DisDute Resolutiol! Forum 25 (Dec. 

Perkins and Olson, "An Advo( te's Primer or ~dicaid Managed Care Contracting," 31 
ClearinsJ10use Rev. 19 (May-I ne 1997). 

Perkins and Zinn, T ~ a H lalthv Futur~ -- Irlv and Perio4ic Screening Diagnosis and 
Treatment for Poor Children ( pril 1995) 

Perkins and Rivera, "EPSDT a d Managed C ' 
Into?" 28 QOOngboUg Rev. 248-1260 (Ma , . 

Do Plans Know What They are Getting 
1995). 

Perkins, An Advocate's Medic 'd EPSOT R&elll~:JM~[aa!lnillUl&:al (Nov. 1993). 

Perkins and Melden, An Advollate's Guide to ~<!icaid program (November 1993; July 
1991). : 

I declare under penalty of perj ry that the for ng is true and correct Executed this 10th 

day of August, 1999 in Chapel Hill, N rth Carolina. 

~ 
tJ'nepeI 

4 

. ~,JD, M.P.H. 

I 

I, 


